
MAYOR                      INTERIM  CITY MANAGER 

Brian West Michelle Owens 

 
CITY COUNCIL CLERK OF COUNCIL  
Monty Parks Mayor pro tem Jan LeViner 

Bill Garbett  

Spec Hosti 
Tony Ploughe CITY ATTORNEY 

Nick Sears Edward M. Hughes 

Kathryn Williams Tracy O’Connell 

CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

A G E N D A  
REGULAR MEETING OF TYBEE ISLAND CITY COUNCIL 

February 08, 2024 at 6:30 PM 
Please silence all cell phones during Council Meetings 

 
Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Invocation:  Sheron Burgess, Chaplain, American Legion Auxiliary Unit 154 
     Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Announcements 
 
Recognitions and Proclamations 

1. Miss Tybee Haley Raymond 
2. Monty Parks:  Graduate of Robert Knox Municipal Leadership Institute  and recipient 

of  the Certificate of Excellence which requires 120 of training hours 
3. Jaime Spear:  Employee of the Year, Antar Khaalis, DPW 

  
Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda  
 
Consideration of the approval of the minutes of the meetings of the Tybee island City Council 

4. City Council Meeting, January 11, 2024 
5. Special Meeting, January 24, 2024 

 
Invited Guests and Reports from Staff 

6. Chief Tiffany Hayes:  Orange Crush: Preparations for April 20, 2024 Weekend, Orange 
Crush 2K24 Event 

 
Citizens to be Heard:  Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Maximum allowable times of 5 
minutes. 

7. Jim Kluttz:  Audit Report and Issues  
8. Shirley Wright:  Forever Tybee Supporting Ethical, Open and Transparent Government in 

all decision making and Official Actions 
 
If there is anyone wishing to speak to anything on the agenda other than the Public Hearings, 
please approached the podium.  Please limit your comments to 3 minutes and no more than 5 
minutes. 
 

- Page 1 -



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Consideration of Approval of Consent Agenda 
 
Public Hearings 

9. Site Plan Review:  1401 Strand Avenue, Petitioner:  FB Marino, LLC dba Hydrotech, 
Linchris Tybee Resort 

 
Consideration of Bids, Contracts, Agreements and Expenditures 

10. Statewide Mutual  Aid Agreement - GEMA 
 
Consideration of Ordinances, Resolutions 

11. Resolution 2024-02:  Support for Legislation on Promoters 
12. First Reading 2024-01 Sec 22-192, Times and Process for Collection of Trash and Other 

Refuse from Commercial Properties including from Dumpsters and other Receptacles 
and Address Noise from Idling Commercial Vehicles 

 
Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments 

13. Bubba Hughes:  Ante Litem:  Amy Spell Cribbs, To Deny 
14. Bubba Hughes:  Anti Litem:  Jenny Rutherford, To Deny 
15. Brian West:  City Manager Search 
16. Nick Sears:  Supplemental Water System 
17. Nick Sears:  Proposed Ordinance STR 

 
City Manager Discussion and Action Items 
 
Executive Session 
     Discuss litigation, personnel and real estate  
Possible vote on litigation, personnel and real estate discussed in executive session 
 
Adjournment 
Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are 
required to contact Jan LeViner at 912.472.5080 promptly to allow the City to make reasonable accommodations 
for those persons.   
 
*PLEASE NOTE:  Citizens wishing to speak on items listed on the agenda, other than public hearings, 

should do so during the citizens to be heard section.  Citizens wishing to place items on the council 

meeting agenda must submit an agenda request form to the City Clerk’s office by Thursday at 5:00PM 
prior to the next scheduled meeting.  Agenda request forms are available outside the Clerk’s office at City 

Hall and at www.cityoftybee.org. 

 

 

THE VISION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
  

“is to make Tybee Island the premier beach community in which to live, work, and play.” 
 

 

 

THE MISSION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
  

- Page 2 -

http://www.cityoftybee.org/


 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

“is to provide a safe, secure and sustainable environment by delivering superior services through responsible 
planning, preservation of our natural and historic resources, and partnership with our community to ensure 
economic opportunity, a vibrant quality of life, and a thriving future.” 

 

 

- Page 3 -



File Attachments for Item:

4. City Council Meeting, January 11, 2024

- Page 4 -



 

City Council Minutes, January 11, 2024 
 
Mayor West called the meeting to order at 6:30PM, January 11, 2024.  Those in 
attendance were, Nick Sears, Monty Parks, Spec Hosti, Kathryn Williams, Tony Ploughe 
and Bill Garbett.    Also attending were Michelle Owens, Interim City Manager; Bubba 
Hughes, City Attorney; and Jan LeViner, Clerk of Council.  Tracy O’Connell was excused. 
 
Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Invocation:  Jan LeViner, Clerk of Council 
     Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda  

 Minutes:  City Council Meeting, December 14, 2023 
 Minutes:  Organization Meeting, January 2, 2024 
 Out of State Travel Request:  Jamey Rabun, February 4 - 7, 2024, Carolinas Association 

of RV Parks and Campgrounds State Conference 

 Out of State Travel:  Cassidi Kendrick, Main Street/DDA Manager, National Main Street 

Conference, May 5-9, 2024.  Partially funded by a Grant.  Line Item 100-1320-52-1360 

Recognitions and Proclamations 
Mayor West asked Shirley Sessions, Nancy DeVetter, Barry Brown and Jay Burke to 
come forward.  Mr. Brown and Mr. Burke were not present.  Mayor West then presented 
Mayor Sessions and Council member DeVetter a plaque in recognition for their years of 
service.  Mayor West also presented Ms. Sessions with the gavel she used while in office.  
Ms. DeVetter thanked everyone for their support over her term in office and then 
introduced her family.  Ms. Sessions thanked everyone as well for their support   
 
Jaime Spear introduced Gail Perry, Finance Department, and recognized her an 
Employee of the Quarter:  Mayor West congratulated Ms. Perry. 
 
Mayor West asked for a motion to collect nominations for Mayor pro tem.  Monty Parks made 
a motion to collect nominations.  Spec Hosti seconded the motion.  Vote was unanimous to 
approve, 6-0.  Bill Garbett made a motion to nominate Kathryn Williams.  Spec Hosti made a 
motion to nominate Monty Parks.  Mayor West asked for a vote for Monty Parks.  Those voting in 
favor were Spec Hosti, Tony Ploughe, and Monty Parks.  Those voting against were Bill Garbett, 
Nick Sears, and Kathryn Williams.  Mayor West voting in the affirmative.     Monty Parks was 
appointed as Mayor pro tem by a vote of 4-3.   
 
Planning Commission Consideration (five (5) seats available) 

Marie Rodriguez Beebe 
Anna Butler 
Mack Kitchens 

Beau Livingston 
Elaine McGruder 
David Roberts 

Jan LeViner, Clerk of Council distributed ballots, collected and tallied the ballots (attached).  
Monty Parks made a motion to accept the vote by City Council members with Marie Beebe, 
Anna Butler, Beau Livingston, Elaine McGruder and David Roberts receiving the most votes.  Spec 
Hosti seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 

- Page 5 -Item #4.



 

 

 
Land Development Code Committee Appointment 

John Branigin 
Demery Bishop 
Ron Bossick 
Cody Gay 
Keith Gay 
Holly Grell-Lawe 
Daniel Iyer 

Beau Livingston 
Lauren Mescon 
David McNaughton 
Charles Powell 
David Roberts 
Alan Robertson 

Monty Parks made a motion to approve as presented.  Kathryn Williams seconded.  Vote 
was unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 

Holly Grell-Lawe approached Mayor and Council to give an update on HPC (attached).  
Ms. Grell-Lawe stated the City’s application for a Designated National Register Historic 
District for the central Island area would be submitted to the State Historic Preservation 
Office this week.  The district would be designated as the Strand Summer Cottage Central 
Tybee Island Residential District and is bound by 6th Street to 12th Street and Jone Avenue 
to the Atlanta Ocean. She continued to explain potential grants for the City.   Ms. Grell-
Lawe stated she would like to extend an invitation to the elected officials and the entire 
Tybee community to participate in HPC’s second annual planning meeting on Saturday, 
February 3, 2024 at the Guard House, 10:00AM – 2:15PM.  Mayor West thanked Ms. 
Grell-Lawe. 
 
Citizens to be Heard:  Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Maximum 
allowable times of 5 minutes. 
Dawn Shay:  Ms. Shay approached Mayor and Council.  Ms. Shay stated she supports 
the STR Resolution as presented in the packet.  Mayor West thanked Ms. Shay for her 
comments. 
Keith Gay:  2023-15A:  Mr. Gay approached Mayor and Council.  He spoke to the issue 
to allow for building permits during the Moratorium.    Mr. Gay also spoke to STR 
Resolution that is before Mayor and Council for their consideration.  Mayor West thanked 
Mr. Gay for his comments.   
David Roberts:  Mr. Roberts approached Mayor and Council.  He spoke to the STR 
Resolution that is before Mayor and Council for their consideration.  He also spoke to 
property rights (attached).  Mayor West thanked Mr. Roberts for his comments.   
 
Spec Hosti made a motion to approve the consent agenda.  Monty Parks seconded.  
Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Public Hearings 
Variance Requesting a variance from the marsh buffer ordinance, Sec 3-
090.1(G).  607A Miller Avenue.  Petitioner Osal Evans.  Bill Garbett recused.  George 
Shaw approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Shaw stated the petitioner is asking for a variance 
from the Marsh Buffer Ordinance to be able to develop the lot on Miller Avenue.  The lot is at 
least half marsh and then the marsh buffer itself would eliminate any buildable space on the lot.  
The lot was created in the 1920’s and intended to be accessed from 5th Avenue, which is 
inaccessible, and completely marsh.  The Evans purchased the property in the question in 2015 
and requested a variance to reduce the lot size of the lot on Miller and add a drive to the lot 

- Page 6 -Item #4.



 

 

behind.  Mr. Shaw continued to explain the history of the property.  Staff and the Planning 
Commission unanimously recommended denial.   Mr. Ploughe referred to a Council meeting in 
2015 where Staff considered the lot unbuildable.  Mr. Shaw confirmed.  Mr. Sears asked Mr. Shaw 
if the lots had been combined at some point.  Mr. Shaw responded there is no evidence they had 
been combined.  Steve Rushing who is representing the property owner approached Mayor and 
Council.  Mr. Rushing presented additional history of the lot, access issues, and an Affidavit from 
a previous surveyor (attached).    Mrs. Evans decided to sell the property and it was discovered 
the plat had not been recorded and a process began.  In March of 2015, the property was 
predesignated to allow/create access to a public street which is exempt from the 25’ buffer 
requirement.   Mr. Rushing feels the plat was submitted to the City in January/February 2015 and 
was approved. He continued, with the complete waiver of the 25’ would make the lot usable for 
residential purposes.  Mr. Shaw stated the issue of the exemption are for lots that were approved 
prior to 2015, as the plat was not signed until 2018, which is not the same lot that was created 
in 1922.  David Roberts approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Roberts stated Mayor and Council 
as indicated in the records, which is important, approved the buffer.  As there is no structure on 
the plan, he does not feel Mayor and Council can approve the request.  He distributed a 
presentation showing the buildable land and omissions in the application.  He is asking Mayor and 
Council to deny the request.  Dana Holmes approached Mayor and Council.  Ms. Holmes shared 
photographs of the water issues on Miller Avenue, as they exist currently.  She shared her 
concerns if a new structure was built, where the water would go.  Ms. Holmes as Mayor and 
Council deny the request.  Kathryn Williams made a motion to deny.  Monty Parks seconded.  
Vote was unanimous to deny, 5-0.  Bill Garbett recused. 
 
Bill Garbett returned to meeting. 
 
Consideration of Bids, Contracts, Agreements and Expenditures 
Consultant Proposal for Utility Rate Review and CIP Financing. Ms. Owens stated this 
firm would assist in a review of the utility rates and other funding opportunities.  Mr. Hosti asked 
if this is to assist the City in borrowing $2M.  Jen Amerell approached Mayor and Council.  Ms. 
Amerell stated $3M was borrowed.  The contract is specifically to work with the Council on the 
redoing the CIP Plan for water/sewer which will affect the rate structure.  This will also give us 
flexibility for resources.  This is an hourly/not to exceed $27,000 contract.  Mr. Ploughe confirmed 
this firm would also assist in recommendation of funding.  Mr. Garbett asked how the firm would 
assist in the upgrading our CIP.  Ms. Amerell responded, the City currently has a five (5) year CIP 
but Mayor and Council were not comfortable with that amount causing her to reach out for 
assistance/guidance.   She is meeting with Staff to review and bring to Mayor and Council at an 
upcoming workshop.  Mr. Garbett asked how Davenport was recommended.  Ms. Amerell stated 
she called other municipalities like Tybee and they were recommended.  She then spoke with 
them and after a very lengthy telephone call; she feels they are the best fit.   Ms. Williams 
recommended this be move to a workshop setting for further discussions as she does not feel 
comfortable with a vote at this time.  Mr. Parks concurred.  Kathryn Williams made a motion 
to move to a workshop for further discussion.  Monty Parks seconded.  Vote was unanimous to 
approve, 6-0.  DISCUSSION:  Mayor West stated he would poll the council members tomorrow 
for a Special City Council Meeting so as not to delay further.   
 
Approval of Phillips Paving Company, Bid 2023-774, Resurface Various Street in 
Tybee Island.  Various line items, $462,962.50.  Mr. Sears stated he has two questions 
concerning this agenda item:  (1)  With the two (2) bids received, one was for $460,000 and the 

- Page 7 -Item #4.



 

 

other for $900,000, why was there such a difference?  Mr. Gulbronson approached Mayor and 
Council and stated he cannot explain.  A bid package was sent with bid items and quantiles and 
depending on the workload of the contractor and the given cost, whether they bid or not.  Mr. 
Sears asked if he is asking Mayor and Council to approve the bid and the contract. If so, the 
contract is not included in the packet.  Mr. Gulbronson stated the agenda it is to award the bid 
and proceed with the contract. He is asking our legal team to approve the contract and have 
Mayor West execute so as not to come back at a future meeting.   Mr. Sears questioned the 
approval of the proposed contract as it is not before Mayor and Council for review.  Mr. Hughes 
explained the practice is the legal team would draft the contract and have Mr. Gulbronson review.  
Upon his approval, they would finalize and give to the Mayor for signature.  The contract would 
not come back before Mayor and Council.  Mr. Garbett stated he has similar concerns. Mr. Hughes 
stated the practice in place currently applies to time sensitive contracts and if Mayor and Council 
would like it come before them after Staff and legal review he will do so.  The consensus was not 
to delay but to move forward with the current practice.  Mr. Gulbronson stated he would send 
Mayor and Council the contract once completed for their review.  Monty Parks made a motion 
to accept the bid as presented and authorize the Mayor to sign once reviewed and approved by 
Staff and the legal team.  The contract will also be made available to Mayor and Council for review 
and comments. Kathryn Williams seconded the motion.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Award of ITB 2023-777 North End Sanitary Sewer.  Funding from Revenue Bond and 
505-00-11-7300.  Monty Parks made a motion to accept the bid as presented and authorize 
the Mayor to sign once reviewed and approved by Staff and the legal team. The contract will also 
be made available to Mayor and Council for review and comments. Nick Sears seconded.  Vote 
was unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments 
Spec Hosti:  2023-15A, FOR DISCUSSION ONLY.  Mr. Ploughe recused.  Mr. Hosti 
explained this is the ordinance regarding permits for STR’s.  Reference was made to a resident 
who applied for their building permit on August 12th and the resident is asking for an exception 
for his STR which was revoked due to the property being vacant when the application was 
approved.    Mr. Hughes stated it is up to Mayor and Council if they want to expand Ordinance 
2023-15A or not.  If so, it would need to go before the Planning Commission and come to Mayor 
and Council for approval.  Mr. Hosti stated the purpose of the ordinance was to protect residents 
such as Mr. Forsyth.  As this was FOR DISCUSSION ONLY, NO ACTION TAKEN. 
 
Bill Garbett:  Resolution 2024-01 STR Verification. Mr. Garbett stated the Resolution is in 
the packet before them this evening.  Mr. Sears referred to a redline version in the packet which 
includes his recommended changes.  They are not included in Mr. Garbett’s proposed Resolution. 
Mayor pro tem Parks thanked Mr. Garbett for his work regarding the Resolution.   Bill Garbett 
made a motion to approve as presented in the packet before them this evening.  Monty Parks 
seconded.  Voting in favor were Nick Sears, Monty Parks, Kathryn Williams and Bill Garbett.  
Voting against was Spec Hosti.  Vote was 4-1 to approve.  Tony Ploughe recused. 
 
Tony Ploughe returned to the meeting. 
 
Brian West:  City Manager Search.  Mayor West  stated Mayor and Council would conduct 
a City Manager search.  Ms. Owens has agreed to have him work with Jaime Spears, HR Director.  
Bill Garbett made a motion for Mayor West to take the lead and work with Ms. Spear to conduct 

- Page 8 -Item #4.



 

 
 

a proper search for City Manager to include all options and quotes from a search firm with no 
limitations.  Monty Parks seconded.  Voting in favor were Monty Parks, Spec Hosti, Tony Ploughe 
and Bill Garbett.  Voting against was Nick Sears and Kathryn Williams.  DISCUSSION:  Ms. 
Williams is in favor of moving forward but is not in favor of the term “with no limitations”.  Vote 
to approve, 4-2.     
 
City Manager Discussion and Actions Items 
Michelle Owens gave an  Update on beach swings and benches.  Ms. Owens stated there 
was a public meeting where the plans were explained as to the crossovers.  Public Works is 
schedule to begin work soon. 
 
Monty Parks made a motion to adjourn to executive session to discuss real estate, 
personnel and litigation.  Bill Garbett seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Monty Parks made a motion to return to regular session.  Spec Hosti seconded.  Vote 
was unanimous to approve 6-0. 
 
Monty Parks made a motion to adjourn.  Kathryn Williams seconded.  Vote was 
unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:45PM. 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Janet LeViner, MMC 
Clerk of Council 

- Page 9 -Item #4.



 

 

 
 

- Page 10 -Item #4.



- Page 11 -Item #4.



- Page 12 -Item #4.



- Page 13 -Item #4.



- Page 14 -Item #4.



- Page 15 -Item #4.



- Page 16 -Item #4.



- Page 17 -Item #4.



- Page 18 -Item #4.



- Page 19 -Item #4.



- Page 20 -Item #4.



- Page 21 -Item #4.



- Page 22 -Item #4.



- Page 23 -Item #4.



- Page 24 -Item #4.



- Page 25 -Item #4.



- Page 26 -Item #4.



- Page 27 -Item #4.



- Page 28 -Item #4.



- Page 29 -Item #4.



- Page 30 -Item #4.



- Page 31 -Item #4.



- Page 32 -Item #4.



- Page 33 -Item #4.



- Page 34 -Item #4.



- Page 35 -Item #4.



- Page 36 -Item #4.



- Page 37 -Item #4.



- Page 38 -Item #4.



- Page 39 -Item #4.



- Page 40 -Item #4.



- Page 41 -Item #4.



File Attachments for Item:

5. Special Meeting, January 24, 2024

- Page 42 -



 

 
 

 
 
 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes, January 24, 2024.   
 
Mayor West called the Special Meeting to order at 2:00PM, January 24, 2024.  Those in 
attendance were, Nick Sears, Monty Parks, Spec Hosti, Kathryn Williams, Tony Ploughe 
and Bill Garbett.    Also attending were Michelle Owens, Interim City Manager; Bubba 
Hughes, City Attorney; and Jan LeViner, Clerk of Council.  
 
Items for Consideration: 
CIP Financing.  Ms. Amerell approached Mayor and Council to ask for direction with Davenport.  
She continued, the proposal is to have another organization that we can give information to who 
has access to different outlets for funding and grants.  Mr. Sears stated he does not feel Davenport 
can provide what the City is looking for and asked, if approved, when would they start.    Ms. 
Amerell stated Davenport will not start any work until the City gives them specific direction.  Mr. 
Hughes recommended we give them specific direction in writing so there is no confusion.  Mr. 
Sears stated if Ms. Amerell is comfortable with the contract he is in favor.  Ms. Williams made 
reference to the CIP from DPW.  She asked if the priority of projects has changed.  Mr. Gulbronson 
stated no, not at this time. He continued to discuss each item, the priority of each, and funds 
needed.   Mr. Gulbronson stated he is working on projects as the money is available within his 
budget.  The storm water projects are not included in the list.  Ms. Amerell stated they are not 
included, as she would like to focus on water/sewer projects.  Mayor pro tem Parks stated the 
purpose of this is to consider a contract with a consulting firm, Davenport, to review available 
financing options.  There was a brief discussion regarding the inspection of the sewer lines to 
insure repairs are prioritized if needed.  Mr. Gulbronson stated they are being reactive currently   
and would like to be proactive regarding repairs.   Ms. Williams asked Ms. Amerell what the 
consulting firm has to offer, different skill set that she cannot do.  Ms. Amerell responded time 
and personnel.  With a study such as this takes a great deal of time and they have access if the 
City should decide to go to the public market it issue debt.  Ms. Williams asked if GMA would have 
such resources.  Ms. Amerell confirmed but she feels having Davenport will better aid the City.   
Mr. Gulbronson stated in the ten (10) year CIP that he presented, it is $2M a year and there are 
place markers such as a deep well and a water treatment plant.  Mayor pro tem Parks asked if 
there was any lines that have a potential to collapse which will need emergency funding.  Mr. 
Gulbronson state there are probably some unknowns and funding is not in the budget.  Ms. 
Williams thanked Mr. Gulbronson for providing the list of all projects for Council.  Consultant 
Proposal for Utility Rate Review. Spec Hosti made a motion to approve the proposed 
contract.  Bill Garbett seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0.    
 
Monty Parks made a motion to adjourn.  Spec Hosti seconded.  Vote was unanimous, 
6-0. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Janet LeViner, MMC 
Clerk of Council 

- Page 43 -Item #5.



File Attachments for Item:

9. Site Plan Review:  1401 Strand Avenue, Petitioner:  FB Marino, LLC dba Hydrotech, Linchris 

Tybee Resort

- Page 44 -



- Page 45 -Item #9.



- Page 46 -Item #9.



- Page 47 -Item #9.



- Page 48 -Item #9.



- Page 49 -Item #9.



- Page 50 -Item #9.



- Page 51 -Item #9.



- Page 52 -Item #9.



- Page 53 -Item #9.



- Page 54 -Item #9.



- Page 55 -Item #9.



- Page 56 -Item #9.



- Page 57 -Item #9.



- Page 58 -Item #9.



- Page 59 -Item #9.



- Page 60 -Item #9.



- Page 61 -Item #9.



- Page 62 -Item #9.



- Page 63 -Item #9.



- Page 64 -Item #9.



- Page 65 -Item #9.



- Page 66 -Item #9.



- Page 67 -Item #9.



- Page 68 -Item #9.



- Page 69 -Item #9.



- Page 70 -Item #9.



- Page 71 -Item #9.



File Attachments for Item:

10. Statewide Mutual  Aid Agreement - GEMA

- Page 72 -



- Page 73 -Item #10.



- Page 74 -Item #10.



- Page 75 -Item #10.



- Page 76 -Item #10.



- Page 77 -Item #10.



- Page 78 -Item #10.



- Page 79 -Item #10.



- Page 80 -Item #10.



- Page 81 -Item #10.



- Page 82 -Item #10.



- Page 83 -Item #10.



- Page 84 -Item #10.



- Page 85 -Item #10.



- Page 86 -Item #10.



- Page 87 -Item #10.



- Page 88 -Item #10.



- Page 89 -Item #10.



File Attachments for Item:

11. Resolution 2024-02:  Support for Legislation on Promoters

- Page 90 -



 RESOLUTION NO. 2024-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA TO 

SPECIFICALLY REQUEST MEMBERS OF THE LOCAL DELEGATION, 

INCLUDING SENATOR BENJAMIN L. WATSON AND 

REPRESENTATIVE JESSE L. PETREA TO SPONSOR AND SUPPORT 

LOCAL LEGISLATION TO BE INTRODUCED THAT WOULD ALLOW 

THE CITY TO SEEK DAMAGES OR OTHER LEGAL RELIEF FROM 

SPONSORS AND PROMOTERS OF UNPERMITTED EVENTS 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Tybee Island, Georgia (“City”) has been the site of 

unpermitted events over many years, which on many occasions have resulted in 

significant risk to public safety by generating gun fire, physical injuries, property 

damage and utter disregard for all rules and ordinances of the City and laws of the state 

of Georgia; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the unpermitted events create additional challenges and burdens 

for the City staff including but not limited to overtime for workers on public safety to 

monitor crowds and traffic, emergency responders addressing vastly increased 

incidents of life threatening situations as well as for public works and sanitation to 

address large amounts of debris and other destruction of public property; 

 

 WHEREAS, in addition to the taxing of the City’s own staff and resources, the 

City has had to expend additional monies to obtain additional resources including but 

not limited to hiring additional police and emergency personnel from other agencies to 

assist in the protection of persons and property as well as addressing crowd control; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS,  this increased workload and expenditures for the City as well as 

the hiring of resources from third parties creates a financial burden for the City which 

would not be necessary if the events had been properly permitted and operated; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined a need to request local legislation and/or 

general legislation in order to authorize the City to try and recoup some of these 

additional expenses created by unpermitted events; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City needs legislative assistance in order to solidify a 

mechanism through which it can seek to recoup damages or other legal relief as a result 

of unpermitted events, 

 

- Page 91 -Item #11.



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 

City of Tybee Island duly assembled that Senator Benjamin L. Watson and 

Representative Jesse L. Petrea are authorized and requested to prepare and/or sponsor 

legislation which would  assist the City to seek damages or other legal relief associated 

with unpermitted events from  the sponsors, promoters and operators of such events. 
  

 SO RESOLVED, this ____ day of _________________________, 2024. 

 

 
ATTEST:     CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA 

 

       

By:____________________________ By: ________________________________ 

 Jan LeViner, MMC    Brian West, Mayor 

 Clerk of Council 

       

 

      By: ________________________________ 

       Monty Parks, Mayor Pro Tem and  

          Council Member 

 

 

 

      By: ________________________________ 

       William Garbett, Council Member 

 

 

 

      By: ________________________________ 

       Michael “Spec” Hosti,Council Member 

 

 

 

      By: ________________________________ 

       Tony Ploughe, Council Member 

 

 

      By: ________________________________ 

              Nick Sears, Council Member 

 

       

      By: ________________________________ 

       Kathryn Williams, Council Member 

 

- Page 92 -Item #11.



File Attachments for Item:

12. First Reading 2024-01 Sec 22-192, Times and Process for Collection of Trash and Other 

Refuse from Commercial Properties including from Dumpsters and other Receptacles and 

Address Noise from Idling Commercial Vehicles

- Page 93 -



 
4892-1074-6017.1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-01 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA, TO ADDRESS THE TIMES AND 

PROCESS FOR COLLECTION OF TRASH AND OTHER REFUSE FROM 

COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES INCLUDING FROM DUMPSTERS AND 

OTHER RECEPTACLES AND TO ADDRESS NOISE FROM IDLING 

COMMERCIAL VEHICLES 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, 

Georgia, (the “City”) is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the 

Constitution of the State of Georgia to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and 

improve the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Tybee Island, 

Georgia, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, 

Georgia, is the Mayor and Council thereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to adopt ordinances under its 

police and home rule powers; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has a mix of residential and commercial land uses which 

in certain locations are adjacent to each other; and 

 

 WHEREAS, some of the operations or businesses on the commercial 

properties include using commercial dumpsters or other containers which require 

collection and disposal at regular intervals; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the process of collecting and disposing of refuse from 

commercial dumpsters can cause loud and disturbing sounds to adjacent property 

owners; and  

 

 WHEREAS, it is desirable to provide regulations as the timing of collections 

and disposals from commercial dumpster or other receptacles to limit any 

unreasonable interference with adjacent property owners; and 

 

 WHEREAS, at times commercial vehicles that are idling or waiting can create 

noise that disturbs citizens and surrounding property owners; and  

 

- Page 94 -Item #12.



 

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby ordained by the governing authority of the 

City of Tybee Island that the Code of Ordinances will be amended as follows: 

 

SECTION 1 

 

 Section 22-192 is amended by adding section (b)(3) to address noise due to 

collection and disposal services on property as follows: 

 

 (b)(3)  The following additional requirements shall apply to private 

businesses which operate in the City and provide solid waste collection and 

disposal services to dumpsters or similar trash receptacles: 

 

  a. No person or entity shall engage in the collection, 

transportation or disposal of any solid waste or recyclables from dumpsters, 

containers or receptacles of any kind or type between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 

7:00 a.m. on weekdays and 9:00 p.m. to 9:00 a.m. on weekends, except  in those 

locations where compliance would pose a threat to public health, safety and 

welfare, which must be identified by the person or entity engaged in the collection, 

transportation or disposal of any solid waste or recyclable and approved by the 

Code Enforcement Official. 

 

  b. In those locations where compliance would pose a threat to 

public health, safety and welfare, the Code Enforcement Official shall consult with 

the sanitation or disposal company and the affected property owner to determine if 

compliance would constitute such a threat.  If compliance would not pose a threat 

to public  health, safety or welfare, collection must comply with the time 

prohibitions listed above. 

 

  c. If the Code Enforcement Official determines that collection 

during prohibited time is warranted, City staff will work with the sanitation or 

disposal company to minimize noise generated by the collection/disposal efforts.  

This would include but not be limited to modifying equipment to muffle or lessen 

noise, increasing driver education on safety and service issues through better 

training, and evaluation of possible dumpster relocation. 

 

  d. If the sanitation or disposal company fails to cease collection 

during prohibited times or to minimize the noise generated by collection, the 

person(s) directing/managing the operation of the company and the employee 

whose acts violated the terms of this ordinance will be considered a violation of 

this article and subject to prosecution through the City’s court system.  

- Page 95 -Item #12.



 

 

SECTION 2 
 

 Section 22-113 is added which provides: 

 

 No commercial vehicle will be permitted to sit with its engine idling for 

more than 10 minutes between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. on weekdays 

and 9:00 p.m. to 9:00 a.m. on weekends.  

 

SECTION 3 

 

 If any section, clause, sentence or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid 

or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in 

no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.  It is hereby 

declared as the intent of the City of Tybee Island Mayor and Council that this ordinance 

would have been adopted had such invalid or unconstitutional portion not been 

included herein. 

 

SECTION 4 

 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly 

repealed.   

 

SECTION 5 
 

 It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the 

provisions of this ordinance shall become effective and be made a part of the Code 

of Ordinances, City of Tybee Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may 

be renumbered to accomplish such intention. 

 

SECTION 6 

  

This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council 

pursuant to The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

  

 This Ordinance shall become effective on _____ day of ______________, 

2024. 

 

ADOPTED THIS       DAY OF                    , 2024. 

 

- Page 96 -Item #12.



 

______________________________ 

MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

                                                         

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

FIRST READING:   

SECOND READING:    

ENACTED:     

- Page 97 -Item #12.



File Attachments for Item:

13. Bubba Hughes:  Ante Litem:  Amy Spell Cribbs

- Page 98 -



- Page 99 -Item #13.



- Page 100 -Item #13.



File Attachments for Item:

14. Bubba Hughes:  Anti Litem:  Jenny Rutherford

- Page 101 -



- Page 102 -Item #14.



- Page 103 -Item #14.



File Attachments for Item:

16. Nick Sears:  Supplemental Water System

- Page 104 -



- Page 105 -Item #16.



- Page 106 -Item #16.



- Page 107 -Item #16.



- Page 108 -Item #16.



- Page 109 -Item #16.



File Attachments for Item:

17. Nick Sears:  Proposed Ordinance - STR FOR DISCUSSION ONLY

- Page 110 -



- Page 111 -Item #17.


	Top
	Item #1.	Miss Tybee Haley Raymond
	Item #2.	Monty Parks:  Graduate of Robert Knox Municipal Leadership Institute
	Item #3.	Jaime Spear:  Employee of the Year, Antar Khaalis, DPW
	Item #4.	City Council Meeting, January 11, 2024
	20240111Minutes
	vote
	hpc
	roberts
	manac

	Item #5.	Special Meeting, January 24, 2024
	Minutes

	Item #6.	Chief Tiffany Hayer: Orange Crush: Preparations for April 20, 2024 Weekend, Orange Crush 2K24 Event
	Item #7.	Jim Kluttz:  Audit Report and Issues
	Item #8.	Shirley Wright:  Forever Tybee Supporting Ethical, Open and Transparent Government in all decision making and Official Actions
	Item #9.	Site Plan Review:  1401 Strand Avenue, Petitioner:  FB Marino, LLC dba Hydrotech, Linchris Tybee Resort
	1401 STRAND-SITE PLAN-CC

	Item #10.	Statewide Mutual  Aid Agreement - GEMA
	City of Tybee Island

	Item #11.	Resolution 2024-02:  Support for Legislation on Promoters
	Resolution 2024-02 Support for Legislation on Promoters (4874-7751-7217.1)

	Item #12.	First Reading 2024-01 Sec 22-192, Times and Process for Collection of Trash and Other Refuse from Commercial Properties including from Dumpsters and other Receptacles and Address Noise from Idling Commercial Vehicles
	01.30.24 Ordinance Collection and Disposal Waste Times 2024-02 (4892-1074-6017.1)

	Item #13.	Bubba Hughes:  Ante Litem:  Amy Spell Cribbs
	cribbs

	Item #14.	Bubba Hughes:  Anti Litem:  Jenny Rutherford
	rutherford

	Item #15.	Brian West:  City Manager Search
	Item #16.	Nick Sears:  Supplemental Water System
	water

	Item #17.	Nick Sears:  Proposed Ordinance - STR FOR DISCUSSION ONLY
	proposed ordinance

	Bottom



